Finance Committee

Meeting Minutes

Meeting Information Date: June 13, 2023 Time: 6:00 P.M. Location: 31 Wakefield Street

Committee members present: Mayor Callaghan, Deputy Mayor Lachapelle, Councilor Beaudoin, Councilor Gray, Councilor Hainey, Councilor Hamann, and Councilor Larochelle

City staff present: Finance Director Katie Ambrose. Deputy Finance Director Mark Sullivan.

Agenda & Minutes

1. Call to Order

Mayor Callaghan called the Finance Committee meeting to order at 6:00 PM.

Councilor Beaudoin led the Committee in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Deputy City Clerk Cassie Givara took roll call attendance. All Councilors were present.

2. Acceptance of Minutes: April 2023

Councilor Lachapelle **MOVED** to **ACCEPT** the minutes of the April 11, 2023 Finance Committee meeting. Councilor Hamann seconded the motion. The **MOTION CARRIED** by a unanimous voice vote.

3. Public Input

There was no one present for public input.

4. Unfinished Business:

4.1.1 None

5. New Business:

5.1.1 ARPA Funds, project updates, review & discussion

Finance Director Ambrose directed the Committee to the document (Addendum A) detailing the projects requesting use of American Rescue Plan Act funds, the amounts requested for each project, and at what stage these projects are it in terms of committee, approval and/or completion. She explained there is currently an uncommitted balance of \$1,689,643 in ARPA funds.

Director Ambrose gave an overview of the following projects:

<u>Community Outreach Facilitator position</u> (listed as "Community Health Coordinator" in the tracking document): She explained that in the prior fiscal year there was \$143,000 allocated and the position had been included in the FY24 budget at an additional \$100,000. She spoke about the funding model approved by Council to gradually phase the position out of ARPA funding and into the General Fund/City budget.

Employer Assisted Childcare Cooperative: \$1.4 million has been allocated for this project. She reported that the childcare work team has been working diligently on this project and the City has now contracted with Mill's Consulting, who will be performing a needs assessment and feasibility study as well as putting out a staff survey in upcoming months. City staff will be working on a survey for the greater community. Director Ambrose said that there will also a facility analysis taking place with all the data coming together in the fall. This will help to inform recommendations on location and business model. Councilor Beaudoin asked if there was a more specific timeline on when this data/report would be completed. Director Ambrose stated that the agreement with Mill's consulting goes through the end of October 2023, so it will likely be shortly thereafter.

<u>Employee Premium Pay:</u> The original allocation approved by Finance was \$84,044. Of this, there was \$10,829 unexpended. This will eventually be available for deauthorization and re-allocation.

<u>Water Transmission Main Lining</u>: The original allocation for this project was requested at \$2,000,000. However, the Department of Public works was able to have the line scoped, and after this review it was determined that the line was in much better condition than anticipated. This will likely cause the project to come in significantly under budget, leaving approximately \$1 million unexpended. The Department of Public Works will likely come to Council for a vote on reallocation of these unexpended funds for other projects. In the meantime, the entire \$2 million allocation will remain earmarked for DPW use until further action is taken.

Lost Operating Revenue Replenishment: This item was relative to revenue lost during COVID at the Rochester Ice Arena and this allocation has been completed with an allocation of \$129,815.

<u>Route 202A Water Main Extension Project</u>: This project had an initial allocation of \$600,000. The portion of the project for which this allocation was earmarked has now been completed.

Councilor Hamann asked if the new road for Phase II of the Granite Ridge would be eligible for ARPA funds. Director Ambrose answered that it was unlikely that the road referenced would qualify; she clarified that for infrastructure work, any project which would qualify for State revolving loan funds would typically qualify for ARPA funds and this would not fall under that criteria. She stated that she would verify this information to be certain.

Councilor Beaudoin referenced the Cocheco Well Treatment Upgrade project, for which \$5.6 million had been requested (excluded from the City Manager's recommendations). He asked if the City utilized this requested ARPA funding if it would negate the need to bond the project for \$6 million as discussed during the budget process. Director Ambrose confirmed that this is a high dollar amount project and the DPW is working on multiple ways to fund it outside of the City budget. Councilor Beaudoin stated that he felt the Cocheco Well upgrades would be a good use of ARPA funding which remains unallocated would only cover a portion of the cost for this project. There was a brief discussion regarding the Utility Advisory Board, and their role in advising the City on water/sewer rates. The Committee discussed iron and manganese levels in water not being a primary contaminant at present, but how they will be regulated in the future and the need for these upgrades in order to comply with these future regulations.

Director Ambrose said there has been a request brought forward from the Riverwalk Committee to use ARPA funds for the proposed Overlook project. The estimated cost of this project would be \$180,000-\$200,000. She reported that the City had determined this would be a permissible use of ARPA funds. If approved, there will need to be a determination on how the project will be managed and by whom, who will handle ongoing maintenance, and other considerations related to the project. Councilor Larochelle asked, if the money were allocated for the Riverwalk overlook project, would it take money away from other potential projects. Mayor Callaghan clarified that there is approximately \$1.6 million dollars unallocated and, if approved, the Riverwalk project would come from these uncommitted funds. Councilor Hamann advocated for the Riverwalk overlook project to be added to the list for these uncommitted funds.

Mayor Callaghan said that in previous conversations with local manufacturers, their top concern had been workforce housing. Economic Development had requested \$1.5 million for the development of workforce housing which had not been included in the City Manager's recommendations for ARPA funding. Director Ambrose indicated that workforce housing is a permissible use for ARPA funds and stated that the City can review and bring information forward on how this could potentially work in the City.

Director Ambrose spoke about a potential request for bathrooms at the Rochester Common. The porta-potties that are currently in use are unlikely to be an option long-term due to multiple issues encountered in this location. She said the proposal for bathrooms had gone to bid in 2014 and the received bids came in between \$84,000 - \$162,000, which did not include any heating or the connection to City water and sewer. She spoke about considerations that staff had brought forward if the bathrooms were approved, such as remote access control to lock the bathrooms, shutting them down during certain hours or dates, and potentially having an attendant or "ambassador" available to supervise the restrooms. Councilor Lachapelle speculated that the cost quoted for this project from 2014 would have increased significantly, especially with the added cost of a paid attendant/ambassador. He said he would support the consideration of adding this project to the list. Councilor Larochelle suggested that if these bathrooms are approved, that they should be constructed similar to restrooms in correctional facilities to minimize opportunity for vandalism and damage.

Director Ambrose spoke about a potential initiative for lead paint remediation; both prevention and abatement would be permissible uses. She gave further details on lead paint being an issue in Rochester and the monetary costs to the City and schools. The Committee discussed techniques of lead remediation, sources of lead contamination, and the importance of addressing the issue. Councilor Gray suggested that the Committee reach out to Councilor Desrochers, who has a good deal of knowledge regarding lead remediation and the costs experienced from lead poisoning. Councilor Beaudoin cautioned that the City should include DHHS in the discussion of lead paint remediation to ensure there is not duplication of efforts, to determine what the City's role would be with the State already addressing the issue. Mayor Callaghan suggested that the City's Health Officer be included in this discussion to help identify the City's role.

Director Ambrose referenced the CIP project for the third floor police department renovation for the new dispatch center. She reported that it had become evident that the project will exceed the allotted amount and will need additional funding. She indicated that ARPA funding could be used for at least a portion of the project. If ARPA funding is used, this will help to offset the cost requested in supplemental appropriations.

Reports from Finance & Administration

5.1.2 Monthly Financial Report Summary-May 31, 2023

Deputy Finance Director Sullivan stated that non property tax revenues continue to be strong and reported that expenses are trending to budget.

Councilor Beaudoin asked if the money that is currently in the Unassigned Fund Balance could be invested for a higher return on investment. Deputy Director Sullivan explained that there is Unassigned Fund Balance, which is the position of the general fund (assets over liability), and separately there is cash; the ratios of each vary over time. He spoke about the methodology the City takes with investments and how much money needs to be maintained for operations. He explained that there is currently \$13 million in CDs and spoke about the current interest rates, other liquid investment accounts, and how these investments are handled.

Mayor Callaghan asked if the police dispatch overtime had been slowing down. Deputy Director Sullivan explained that the report did not provide a comparison with past month to show trends.

Director Ambrose gave an update on the Crosspoint Church space at the Community Center. She explained that the church's lease expires at the end of June, however the terms of their lease require a 180-day notice of intention to renew, which had not been received. She explained that there is an increasing need for additional space for City departments, which could be a potential use for this space. The aforementioned City childcare facility could also potentially utilize this space. Director Ambrose explained that the was considering reaching out to Crosspoint Church and offering a 1-year extension to give them an opportunity to source another location, if desired. She also spoke about a broader discussion which needed to occur regarding the Community Center fund and at what point the revenues are not supporting the expenses and potentially transitioning to a general fund structure to support the

City's needs.

Councilor Gray **MOVED** to direct the City Attorney to draft a letter to the Crosspoint Church, including the terms of the lease and the procedure that should be followed if they wish to renew the lease, as well as outlining the current options for renewal. Councilor Larochelle seconded the motion. The **MOTION CARRIED** by a unanimous voice vote. There was clarification on the motion and discussion on other space options that could be utilized for City needs, such as Nancy Loud and School Street Schools, and the District Courthouse building.

Councilor Beaudoin commented that the lease price of \$19,000 per year with city utilities included for a 3,000 sqf facility, is a very small amount for a commercial rental. He suggested that the City take a closer look at their rental/lease prices and consider revising their rates.

5.1.3 Trustees of Trust-Bar Harbor Wealth Management Quarterly Report

Councilor Beaudoin asked if the City was happy with Bar Harbor's management style and the return on investment. Deputy Finance Director Sullivan stated that the Trustees of the Trust fund would be able to better answer this question. There was brief discussion on the legibility of the report and the potential of including the interest rate along with the other data given.

6 Other

No discussion.

7 Adjournment

Mayor Callaghan **ADJOURNED** the Finance Committee meeting at 6:47 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Cassie Givara, Deputy City Clerk

<u>Department</u>	ARPA Project Descriptions	Requested <u>Amount</u>	City Manager <u>Included</u>	City Manager <u>Excluded</u>	Finance Comm <u>Endorsed</u>	<u>Status-Notes</u>	Finance <u>Comm Date</u>	Council Adopted <u>Amount</u>	Adopted <u>Date</u>	Finance <u>Set Up</u>
City Manager's Office	Sheltering-Homeless Initiative	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000			In-Finance Comm				
City Manager's Office	Community Health Coordinator	\$916,000	\$916,000		\$916,000	Recommend Full Council	9/14/2021	\$143,000	4/5/2022	
City Manager's Office	Employer Assisted Child Care Cooperative	\$1,400,000	\$1,400,000		\$1,400,000	Recommend Full Council		\$1,400,000	4/5/2022	
Finance-Human Resources	Employee Premium Pay	\$92,000	\$92,000		\$85,044	Recommend Full Council		\$85,044	4/5/2022	
Water Fund	Water Transmission Main Lining	\$2,000,000	\$2,000,000		\$2,000,000	Recommend Full Council	10/12/2021	\$2,000,000	11/3/2021	11/12/2021
Arena	Lost Operating Revenue Replenishment	\$129,815	\$129,815		\$129,815	Recommend Full Council	9/14/2021	\$129,815	10/5/2021	10/8/2021
Recreation	Lost Operating Revenue Replenishment	\$105,022		\$105,022		In-Finance Comm				
Economic Development	Development of Affordable Housing	\$1,500,000		\$1,500,000		In-Finance Comm				
	Economic Development -Data Repository	\$280,000		\$280,000		In-Finance Comm				
Water Fund	Cocheco Well Treatment Upgrades	\$5,600,000		\$5,600,000		In-Finance Comm				
Water Fund	Round Pond Capacity Augmentation	\$1,000,000		\$1,000,000		In-Finance Comm				
Water Fund	Electrical Upgrades	\$1,650,000		\$1,650,000		In-Finance Comm				
Water Fund	RT 202A Water Main Extension Project	\$600,000	\$600,000		\$600,000	Recommend Full Council	10/12/2021	\$600,000	11/3/2021	11/12/2021
Sewer Fund	WWTF Carbon Storage & Sludge Dewatering	\$2,000,000		\$2,000,000		In-Finance Comm				
Sewer Fund	WWTF Secondary Clarifier Upgrades	\$950,000		\$950,000		In-Finance Comm				
Planning	Building Deferred Maintenance Program	\$301,000		\$301,000		In-Finance Comm				
Easter Seals	Champlin Place Development	\$750,000		\$750,000		In-Finance Comm				
	TOTALS	\$20,273,837	\$6,137,815	\$14,136,022	\$5,130,859			\$4,357,859		
	ARPA SUMMARY	AMOUNTS								
	Total ARPA Entitlement Award	\$6,147,502								
	Finance Committee Recommendations	\$5,130,859								
	Council Adopted	\$4,357,859								
	Uncommitted Balance	<u>\$1,789,643</u>								

Commitment Deadline Date: 12-31-24 Expended Deadline Date: 12-31-26